" CITY OF STURGEON BAY
JOINT PARK AND RECREATION COMMITTEE / BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, January 27, 2021
Council Chambers, City Hall, 421 Michigan Street
5:30 p.m.
1. Roll Call
2. Adoption of Agenda
3. Approval of Minutes from October 28, 2020
4, Public Comment
5. Consideration of accepting gift of Skate Park Lighting
6. Consideration of updates to the 5-Year Park & Recreation Plan
7. Consideration of accepting gift of ADA Water Access Mat
8. Consideration of Farmers Market Policy
9. Consideration of becoming a Monarch City
10.  Directors Report
11.  Adjourn
NOTE: DEVIATION FROM THE AGENDA ORDER SHOWN MAY OCCUR

Notice is hereby given that a majority of the Common Council may be present at this meeting to gather
information about a subject over which they have decision-making responsibility. If a quorum of the

Common Council does attend, this may constitute a meeting of the Common Council and is noticed as
such, although the Common Council will not take any formal action at this meeting.

Notice is hereby given that if a quorum of one of the committees is not present, the committee with a
quorum may meet and act upon the agenda subjects.

Postedf

10:00 a.m. Park and Recreation Committee/Board Members:
1/21/2021 Helen Bacon, Chair
Gary Nault, Vice Chair
PSQ Chris Larsen
: Randy Morrow
Marilyn Kleist
George Husby

Jay Renstrom
Mike Barker




CITY OF STURGEON BAY
JOINT PARK AND RECREATION COMMITTEE/BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, October 28, 2020
Council Chambers, City Hall, 421 Michigan Street
' 5:30 p.m.

A meeting of the Joint Park and Recreation Committee / Board was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Chairperson
Bacon in Council Chambers, City Hall, 421 Michigan Street.

Roll Call: Members present were Ald. Bacon, Ald. Nault, Marilyn Kleist, Chris Larsen, Randy Morrow and Jay
Renstrom. George Husby was absent. Also present was City Administrator Josh VanLieshout, Community
Development Director Marty Olejniczak, and Municipal Services Director Mike Barker.

Adoption of the Agenda: Moved by Ald. Nault fo adopt the following agenda, seconded by Jay Renstrom

Roll call

Adoption of agenda

Public Comment on agenda and non-agenda items

Approval of minutes from August 26, 2020 meeting.

Chairs report

Consideration of land swap at Otumba Park with Claire Morkin
Review of recommended updates to parks for the § Year Parks Plan
Consideration to approve the Graham Park Artistic Foundation installation, including appropriateness of
the art piece and the location of the art work.

Directors Report ‘

0. Adjourn

PONOG AN

= (O

Mr. Morrow asked if approval of prior meeting minutes would remain on the agenda. Ald. Bacon said that it
would remain on the agendas in the future.
All in Favor. Carried,

Public Comment: None

Approval of minutes from August 26, 2020 meeting.

Ald. Nault moved to approve minutes. Mr. Renstrom seconded.

Discussion: Mr. Morrow mentioned that mentioning of the engineering and design of Otumba Park was missing.
(They have been updated.)

All in Favor. Carried

Chairs Report:
Ald. Bacon announced that she is the new Chair for the committee and Ald. Nault is the Vice Chair. Her

intentions are to have meetings that are focused on the agenda and remain focused on sticking to it. Her
intentions are to look years ahead and focus on completing some of the items in the Sunset Park Master Plan.
She spoke about the progress of the shoreline restoration in Sunset and Bay View Parks. She spoke of the
newly revived Arts Board and spoke of how they are an advisory board to the Parks and Recreation Board and

Comnmittee.

Consideration of fand swap at Ofumba Park with Claire Morkin

Ms. Morkin spoke on the topic. She mentioned the unusual and non-conforming lot line that her property has
and that she would like to make her lot lines more squared. She stated that it would require a land swap with
the City to achieve this. She is not looking to gain anything, only swap. She stated that this would make a fence
around her lawn look much nicer and not come down to a point near the fennis courts.

Mike Barker mentioned that there is nothing for the City to gain or lose in the proposed swap and that he would
support the swap. Ald. Nault mentioned that if the City paid for half of the survey work it may set a precedence
that the City would do this although they had nothing to gain. Mr. Olejniczak spoke of property line setbacks.
Also that Ms. Morkin has a non-canforming lot and this swap should correct that issue. Mr. VanLieshout -




mentioned that this should be a 1 for 1 swap sa it is fair for both parties. Mr. Larsen mentioned that it would
benefit the City due to the redistribution of land would have Ms. Morkin assume the ownership of a couple large
maple trees. He noted that the City would no longer be responsible for their maintenance. Ald. Nault asked if
we should recommend not paying for this since the City does not gain anything from it. Mr. Vanl.ieshout said
that the funding should be handled by the Common Council. Mr. Renstrom stated that if Ms. Morkin installed a
fence it could help with the noise issues that she has brought up at prior meefings.

Mr. Renstrom moved to approve the land swap as requested by Claire Morkin. Ald. Nault seconded.
All in Favor. Carried

Review of recommended updates to parks for the 5 Year Parks Plan

Mike Barker stated that the meetings we had over the past several months were captured and the
recommended changes have been updated. He wanted to go through the list to make sure nothing was missed
since there were so many ideas in a very short period of time. Ms. Kleist brought up that the lce Aged Trail and
Trail Head should be in the list. Mr. Morrow mentioned that something needs to be added for Sunset Park to
improve the basketball court and the southernmost tennis courts. The standing water over the summer was
often on the basketball court. He also mentioned that the beach and walkway improvements should be added to
Otumba Park. Ald. Bacon discussed the activity at the Westside Waterfront. She stated that we needed to add
“Finish Promenade” to the list. Mr. Morrow mentioned that we should try to stick to the plan that the West
Waterfront Ad Hoc Committee developed. He also said that we should try to maximize the use of the space as
a park, begin creating an name for the park and finalize the design as soon as there is a development
agreement and accepted design. Ald. Nault mentioned that we should go over this again at the next meeting.
Mike Barker mentioned that if anyone had questions about the list to contact him prior o the next meeting.

Consideration to approve the Graham Park Artistic Foundation installation, including appropriateness of

the art piece and the location of the art work.

Ald. Bacon gave a description of the art work and said that the dimensions on the artistic rendering of the piece
may not be exactly correct. She stated that the drawings provided are the only thing we have to base our
decisions on. She also stated that there were lights on it that wil shine up against it at night. Mr. Morrow asked if
there were any restrictions on the lighting where it may be a problem. He said that he liked the design. Mike
Barker mentioned that he thought it was appropriate for the location since the sail clubs frequent that location.
Ald. Nault said that he liked it and thought it would be a nice fit in that location. Mr. Renstrom said that it was

nice for that location.

Mr. Morrow moved to approve Graham Park Artistic Foundation art piece. Mr. Renstrom seconded.
All in Favor. Carried

Directors Report: Mike Barker stated: The tree planting was completed at Woods West Park by Chris Larson
and others and that the Parks Department will finish mulching. He mentioned that the office has been short
staffed and that the doors have been closed. He is hopeful that the vacant assistant position will be filled prior
to the next meeting. He mentioned that the parks restrooms are being closed due to the cold temperafures.
None of the buildings are heated and he does not want to have expensive damage by trying to keep them open

for a few more days.

Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 @ 4:30 PM - City Hall
Motion to adjourn by Ald. Nault, seconded by Ms. Kieist All in favor. Carried.
Meeting adjourned af 6:41 pm

Respectfully submitted,

Mike Barker
Director of Municipal Services




®

2021 OUTDOOR RECREATION PLAN
FOR THE
CITY OF STURGEON BAY

Prepared by

The Clty of Sturg \on Bay Parks and Recreation Department and Com.munity

Development Directc -

Adopted by: _
The City of Sturgeon Bay Common Council on February 16; 2016




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Acknowledgments

Mission Statement

Introduction :
A. Importance of Parks and Qutdoor Recrealior
B. Park Planning
C. Objectives
D.  Types of Parks

Inventory of Recreational Facilities
A. Municipal Facilities
B. Other Public Outdoor Recreatiol

Outdoor Recreation Needs Anal
A.  Acreage Analysis
B.  Service Area Analysis *

Recommendations,
New'F

Servi eighborhood Parks

Map 4 Service Aréa for Neighborhood Playgrounds
Map 5 Service Area for Community Parks

Map 6 - Locations for Potential Future Parks

Map 7 Potential Expansion of Cherry Blossom Park
Map 8 ~ Lawrence Big Hill — Public Access Points

Page

22

3

19
21

27
28
29
30
33
37
39




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We want o thank the following individuals, Common Council, Park and Recreation
Board and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for their assistance and

cooperation with this study.

Mayor
David Ward

Sturgeon Bay Common Council

Helen Bacon Gary Nauit-
David Hayes Seth Wiederanders
Dan Williams Kirsten Reeths

Kelly Avenson

Helen Bacon Gary Nault.
Spencer Gustafson
Mike Barker
Randy Morrow

Jay Renstrom

. Chris Larsen

City Admini Jésh VanLieshout
Stephanie Reinhardt
Valerie Clarizio
Martin Olejniczak

Chad Shefchik

Mike Barker

Municipal Services Assistant Colleen Degrave
Parks and Recreation Assistant Patty Quinn

f
Cooperating Organizations: ' Wisconsin DNR




City of Sturgeon Bay Park and Recreation’s
Mission Statement

Enhancing the quality of life through leisure opportunities in Sturgeon Bay




INTRODUCTION

A. Importance of Parks and Outdoor Recreation

For over 100 years the City of Sturgeon Bay has been involved with creating and
maintaining parks for its citizens. The Gity has recognized the value that parks have
toward the health, beauty and economic vitality of the community. People of every age
and standard of living have need for some form of rec jon and municipal parks and
recreation facilities are able to meet such need. But the benefits of parks go beyond the
basic recreation that they provide. :

Parks are very effective in building a sense 0 Qommumty_ ,
and a nucleus for its surrounding neighborhdod: Often a neighborhood is defined by
(and named after) its local park. Park im ments can ben
and are a tangible product of local governmen
a park is a tool for community revitalization anc
area. Sturgeon Bay has included, parks and
downtown waterfront region. -

n-or improvement of
of a distressed

efits to the community. Real
¢ example is the incredible
“but the relationship holds
eople enjoy living near green space
‘he increased property values translate to
on and improvement of parks can pay for
nd the fiscal benefits, parks assist in

new: ts. Today's population is increasingly
nowledge workers” in the high-tech and service sector
ities with leisure activities, scenic beauty and quality
residents) are then able to funnel money into the

Parks and other green space also"
d adja

fits to the provision of parks. Parkiand is very useful in
protecting environmer insitive areas, flood plains and other lands where
development is inappropriate. The open space provided by parks can be used for storm
water management in order to reduce flooding and improve water quality. Trees within
vegetation can be reintroduced into the City (prairie, woods, meadows, flower gardens,
etc.). Given the many benefits of parks, it is appropriate that the City plan for its parks
and outdoor recreation facilities.

B. Park Planning

Sturgeon Bay has been involved with park and recreation planning for many years. The
City's Comprehensive Plan of 1969 included a recreation element. Subsequent

5




updates to the Comprehensive Plan have always had recreation components. Other
City and County publications have focused on park and recreation issues for Sturgeon
Bay through the years. The first comprehensive outdoor recreation plan, the Outdoor
Recreation Plan for the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin was adopted in 1987. Itis this
plan that has been continually updated approximately in five year intervals, with the
previous update adopted by Common Council on January 4, 2011.

With the adoption of this updated Outdoor Recreation Plan, the City will extend its
eligibility to participate in the Land and Water Conservation Fund Program (LAWCON})
and various grants for a five year period 2015-2020. is:program provided 50% grant
assistance to municipalities for recreation acquisition,, elopment and planning. Only
those projects which are specifically identified in th ih may be considered for grant
assistance by the Wisconsin Department of Natu sources, the stat administrator of
this federal aid program. The City has receiv nce from this program on

several occasions.

C. Objectives of Plan

sis for Sturgeon Bay. The plan

contains specific recommendations well as general development

recommendations. Finally, it has in

id and detdiling a coordinated outdoor
nd demands of Sturgeon Bay residents

for the provision of public recreation facilities based on
valent distribution in the City, established demand

creation program with those of providers of recreation,
naximize public benefits.

D. Types of Parks

In contrast to county, state and federal agencies, which have quite varied and extensive
recreation and resource protection responsibilities, communities are most often
concerned with meeting local, daily recreation needs. These local community needs
can best be met by providing a variety of parks which serve all age groups of the




population. The foliowing selected definitions of parks are those considered most
appropriate.

Neighborhood Parks

A neighborhood park provides open space for passive recreation for all ages within a
neighborhood, particularly for the elderly and mothers with young children.
Neighborhood parks generally range from one to seven acres. ldeally, these parks
should be located no more than % mile from home and, if possible, associated with a
natural feature. Access fo these recreation areas sho ld. be safe and easy, avoiding
major thoroughfares and any other obstacles. it development should include

walkways, benches, landscaping shelter and a pla r younger children.

Neighborhood Playgrounds

Neighborhood playgrounds serve appro
parks, but they provide school age chil
Frequently, these playgrounds are associ;
neighborhood park. Where asg ciated with
passive and active outdoor recl
playground can vary, but these a
accommodate ballfields, basketball

he size of a neighborhood -
rger than neighborhood parks to
n play ields, skating rinks in the winter,

n space for older children, adolescents
ted ballfields and athletic fields and are
acfeage demands of such activities, play
nd vacres, with twelve acres as a desirable
hdency to be used by adults from throughout the

< lly a large park under municipal jurisdiction, which
provides a variety of outdoor recreation facilities for residents. Community parks vary
considerably in size and development, frequently containing a number of the following
facilities: swimming facilities, picnic areas, shelter houses, play fields and equipment,
tennis and pickle ball courts, restrooms, nature study areas, hiking trails, boating
facilities, bandstands and winter related facilites. Community parks serve people of all
ages. Community parks may also serve neighborhood park functions for a surrounding

residential area.

The community park




Specialized Recreation Areas

These are areas which are limited in recreation value, limited as to who wishes fo use
them, or are undeveloped for recreation. Examples of these specialized recreation
areas include conservancy areas, flood plains, historic sites, ski hills and golf courses.
While these areas perform important functions and should be considered as part of the
City’s Outdoor Recreation system, they often are not included in calculations of current
recreational areas.

INVENTORY OF OUTDOOR RECREATIONAL FACILITIES:

ace areas and facilities within the

An inventory of all existing outdoor recreation/ope .
i icludes municipal and other

City of Sturgeon Bay was conducted. This_invent
public and quasi-public recreation properties and:
including its location;. size, facilities and

A brief description of each recreation a 7
The locations of these areas

function are presented below and summa
are identified on the map shown in Map 1.

A.  Municipal Facilities

1. Bay View Park
Bay View Parkis
consists of a: sk

rthwest of Madison Avenue. it
ng with an adjoining earthen
The berm is known as the old
d bridge across Sturgeon Bay. There are.
to Bay View Park that both lead to the
ot of Michigan Street Bridge westward
{ . : ‘these waterfront parcels is 3.7 acres, but 1
is used fora i arking lot, most of which is reserved for use by an
i ‘Bay Vi k is a great place to relax and view the waters of
building_industry, the historic bridge, and the adjoining
ity. The park functions as a neighborhood park and
The walkways are handicapped accessible with ramped
area along the raiiroad spur. .

2. Builhead Point> :
Bullhead Point is located in the extreme northwest corner of the City along North
Duluth Avenue. It contains 1.3 acres of which 1 acre is within the City limits and
0.3 acre is within the Town of Nasewaupee. It consists of an unimproved
earthen breakwater that was historically used for off-loading quarry stone. The
property offers great views and fishing opportunities. There are three shipwrecks
immediately adjacent to the breakwater, making this parcel important for
maritime history and undetwater archeology. The site contains a recently
erected marker commemorating the site as part of the Maritime Trails Program of
the Wisconsin Historical Society. There are no other facilities in the park.

g




3. Cherry Blossom Park

This neighborhood park and playground is located at 919 S. Lansing Avenue and
is 5.8 acres in size. It serves the residential area that is west of the Sturgeon
Bay Industrial Park and south of Highway 42-57. The park’s facilities include a
handicapped accessible shelter building with restrooms, playground equipment,
walking and biking trail, sand volleyball court and picnic facilities. The Ahnapee
Trail extension runs through this park and provides access northward toward the
downtown business district and southward through the industrial park toward the
rest of the Ahnapee Trail. Immediately adja .to the southwest corner of
Cherry Blossom Park is additional City-owne operty. Except for the land
along the Ahnapee Trail, this property . ted for future streets and
development but it could potentially be use nd the park’s acreage.

4. Eastside Waterfront Walkway/Sto
This public walkway includes abquf
from the Michigan Street Bridge. ‘It

Stone Harbor Resort and Conference (

tage and runs north
P, .
ront area adjacent to

5. Franke Park
This neighborhoo

Bay at 1700 Cl nated:to the City by the Franke
Family to bg g for the opportunity to walk
along the co joy the wetland area with signs

-path is handicapped accessible from the

identifying the na
i vailable.

parking

s first municipal park. Acquired in 1892 and known
was rénamed Garland Park in 1916. This neighborhood
£ 2 9 Aores located at 435 N. 8 Avenue, between North 7" Place
Street/8%: Avenue. The park is covered by mature white pines. .
clude picnic facilities and a 296 foot long wheel chair

Amenities at
re two small parking lots as well as restrooms.

exercise cou

in 2004, the City purchased 1.2 acres of property adjacent to the municipal East
Side Dock. The purchase was assisted by a grant from the Wisconsin Coastal
Management Program. The land was part of the former PBI Shipyard and the
creation of the waterfront park is a key part of the redevelopment efforts for the
shipyard. The patk lies at the foot of Pennsylvania Street and Oregon Street. It
contains 233 feet of dock wall. Graham Park is a passive recreation area which
includes a waterfront walkway. The walkway connects the adjoining East Side
Dock parcel and winds through the rest of the former PBI Shipyard to connect




with Third Avenue. The City received a Brownficlds Grant from the State of
Wisconsin to assist in removing concrete, asphalt, and building foundations from
the former shipyard in order to bring the park into a usable state. This work
occurred in 2005, :

Adjoining Graham Park is the East Side Dock. The facility contains 325 feet of
dock wall and has been used for transportation purposes for decades, including
docking space for the Goodrich passenger steamers that plied the Great Lakes
years ago. The City received.a Harbor Assistance Grant to reconstruct the failed
dock wall and improve the site for the docking of:cruise ships. The renovation
was completed in 2004 and is now a first cla jiity for the cruising industry.

When coupled with the new waterfront parl & municipally owned property
is is used as a dock area for

In 2020 a gift from a residen
Improvements include an amphith
areas, walkways, and plantings.

8. Lawrence Big Hill Par » :
Lawrence Big Hill Park is central ithin.the City’s east side. It contains
the highest point in the City; with i and dedicated by the Lawrence
Family. Hence ame is a rk originally contained about 10
acres but subs 'atotal ‘acteage to 13.2 acres. The
main entrang / With a small parking lot. There
tial access points to many surrounding
in a mostly natural state with no formal
ic are t no restrooms. At the east end of the
ere'ig a sledding hill used by children in the

rtion of Big Hill Park that is directly across g Avenue from
n gain-access to the rest of Big Hill Park by using the
grotto includes a beautifully landscaped sitting area with
edding pictures have been taken at this site.

9, Little Creek Parkw:

This parkway consists of 6 acres located at 601 S. 16" Place. The property is
mostly wooded with Little Creek running along the ‘rear of the parcel. The
parkway was acquired in 2001 using grants from the Wisconsin DNR and Door
County Green Fund. The park has been left in a mostly natural state in order to
protect the creek and its associated wetlands and flood plain. Walking paths and
other facilities may be constructed in the future.

10




10. Market Square
This recreational area is in the heart of the City, between Michigan and Nebraska

Streets at 4™ Avenue. The Market Square portion is a littie over an acre in area.
The site was formerly known as Soukup field after the family from which the
property was originally purchased in 1911. Historically, it was used as a ballfieild
and ice skating facility. Later, most of the land was paved for use as a municipal
parking lot and the ballfield and skating facilities were relocated to other parts of
the City. However, starting in 1975, the property was used for a Farmers Market
for personally grown produce and hand crafted items. = This popular event
continues to occur on Saturdays during the sum -/ fall seasons. There is one’
building on the site, which is the former warmi helter for the skating rink. it
now houses the Miller Art Museum annex. The northern edge of Market Square
along Michigan Street was landscaped i as part of the bicentennial

celebrations.

11. Martin Park

This park which is located at 207
within the City, dating back to the 18¢
Tweedle Park and Vendome Park and w
and Pleasure Drive Association, - The Cit

£ femorial. In 1963 The Peterson
oor pool operated until the new YMCA
vacant pool building was demolished in
tucted to accommodate the Harmony by
iein: the Park series. It is also a popular
e manent bathroom facilities were installed

comprised of several athletic fields under a combination
hool district jurisdiction. It is located on the east side of
y bordered by Michigan Street, South 12" Avenue, Rhode
Island Street iith 15% Avenue. It is adjacent to the high school, middle
school and Sun Elementary School. The City portion totals around 16.5
acres with another approximate 9 acres owned by the School District of Sturgeon
Bay. The facilities were created from lands donated by the federal government
which used the property for workers’ housing during World War IL.

of both muin]
the city and

The centerpiece is Memorial Field, a joint baseball/football field that features
permanent bleachers with press boxes and a concession/restroom building. The
field is used by the high school football and baseball teams, along with the
American Legion baseball team. Jaycee Field, an adult softball field including

11




concession building with restrooms, is located at the comer of Michigan Street
and South 15" Avenue. There are also three girls little league fields — Optimist
Field and Bay Ship Field are located in the southwest park of the complex
between Quincy Street and Rhode Island Streets. PBI Field is located behind
the outfield of Memorial Field. The main parking lot off of 14" Avenue serves as
a skating rink in the winter, with the concessions building doubling as the

warming shelter.

The school district maintains two facilities at the complex. The track and field
facilites are located along the south side of Michigan Street. They are
conveniently located across the street from the High school and middle school in
order to serve physical education classes - iso as practice fields. The
running track was widened to nine lanes. . The soccer field is located hetween
14" and 15" Avenues. It is partially 0 “district property and partly on
leased municipal property. The fiel { the school district erected
permanent shelters for players in 2

13. Nautical Drive Launch Ramp
This boat launching facility, is focated o th
situated at the end of Nau i i
consists of a fwo lane la

... Although the City owns over two
sed to the Yacht Club and

ular neighborhood park located on the west side
he name of the park honors the original
organized as the Town of Otumba,
little under four acres in size and
. es. There is a sand beach and swimming area which
was improved help prevent beach closures due to storm water runoff.
Otumba Park alsg:includes a large playground, two tennis courts, basketball
court, a sand volle Sall court, a shelter pavilion with restrooms and various pichic
facilities. A waterfront walkway leads towards Bay View Park to the east. There
is a parking lot for about 25 vehicles. In 2020 additional property was purchased

at the south end of the park.

15. Sawyer Park
Located at 36 S. Neenah Avenue, this is another of the City's waterfront parks.

The west side of Sturgeon Bay was known as Sawyer prior o its merger with
Sturgeon Bay in 1891. Sawyer Park contains 8.8 acres and is comprised of

12




reclaimed industrial [ands that the City acquired in the 1980’s. The park is most
known for its large modern boat launching facility. This very popular launching
site has six lanes within a protected basin, docking space, harbor master's
building, restroomsfiish cleaning stations and large lighted parking area with
room for about 170 vehicles with trailers. This facility was completed in 1991.
Next to the launching facility is an expansive lawn area. This area is used for
various fishing tournaments and other special events.. "

The Sturgeon Bay Open Bass Tournament and the Sturgeon Bay Rotary Club
jointly funded construction of a large pavilion at Sawyer Park. The pavilion was
completed in early 2006 and was enclosed i 2010 making it the only fully
enclosed shelter within the City parks system.

The dock wall and the land adjacent tg.the- ris: gcurrently leased to the U.S.

Coast Guard. It is the mooring facility:
Ity .C.G. facilities in the

Sturgeon Bay area. The Coast GUg d through the City

of Sturgeon Bay being named an offici:

‘Park include a pedesirian walkway
goi. Street Bridge. This walkway is
to the northwest. Historical

The most recent improve
winding through the park ar
intended to continue to conng

oad consists of two dog areas, a

ee acre area for larger dogs. No other

‘ted Skate, Park is located adjacent to the West Side Field at
+. The 10,000 square foot park opened in September of
cet skate as well as vertical features and is open to
d BMX bikes. The park was built from funds received
ed from the community as well as grants received from
tion and other local organizations.

the Tony Haw

18. Sunset Park
Sunset Park is the largest municipal park in Sturgeon Bay. ltis located at 747 N.

3™ Avenue, is north of Bay Shipbuilding Company and is bounded by North Third
Avenue, Florida Street, Alabama Street and the shore of Sturgeon Bay. The fotal
size of the property is 63.2 acres, but approximately 20 acres of that is covered
by Bradley Lake (Little Lake). This park was once the site of an early sawmill
established in 1853 by Lyman Bradley and David Crandall. it was known as the
“ ower Mill” and later the “Island Mill” since it is situated on a peninsula of land
separated from the mainland by a swamp. Causeways were constructed and

13




over the years the region was filed by mill refuse and later by fill that was
removed to construct Bay Shipbuilding Company's large graving dock.

In 1928 the City acquired the site. The land was used for workers’ housing
during World War 1. In the 1950°s the City transformed the property into Sunset
Park. The park performs many functions and is regularly used. Facilities include
the Frank Graass shelter building with restrooms, numerous picnic tables, grills
and modern playground equipment. The park also boasts a fine sand beach and
swimming area. The beach was reconstructed in 2010 with the help of Door
County Soil & Water and Wisconsin Coastal Management. At the south edge
there is a boat launch ramp and transient doc ' er along with a trailer parking
area. Athletic facilities include a new m on exercise course, % mie
walking/jogging trail, Frishee golf course, b | court, sand voileyball court,
four tennis courts and three little leagu elds — Kiwanis, Lions and
Rotary Fields with bleachers, dug ou )
sufficient parking and has been recel

ati
N

shore fishing and enjoyin
fishing, especially by kids
Day. Because of its larg
serves as the City's lone commL

ted just north of the entrance adjacent to

‘An engineer: : o
1 water runoff that is entering Bradley Lake

North 3" Ave

an adult:softball facility. It contains 3.3 acres and is
2'of Madison Avenue at Redwood and Spruce Streets.
“bleachers, concession building with restrooms,
and: PA systém with announcer’'s booth. There is a parking
West Side Field, in ‘addition to serving aduit softhall
nts. There are no children’s play facilities, although the
sed as a skating rink in the wintertime. '

20. Westside Waterfront
Located at the heart of the community, . this underutilized stretch of prominent
waterfront is located between the western approach to the two bridges, the
Maple-Oregon Street and the Michigan Street bridges, which connect Sturgeon
Bay's central business districts. . This West Waterfront area offers a unigue
opportunity to revitalize a highly-visible and under used waterfront.

In 2011 the City of Sturgeon Bay began working on plans to improve this area.
Goals for the project development include developing a busy, highly functional

14




waterfront area for community residents as well as improve the City's
appearance and welcome visitors to the community. Improving public access to
the waterfront and encouraging higher and best uses for prominent, valuable
waterfront sites is key to developing this site. The current plan for developing the
~ waterfront portion of this site into a recreation area includes creating a wide

waterfront promenade between the bridges, establishing an approximate one-
acre park area adjoining the promenade at the south end along the Oregon
Street Bridge approach, and installing a large central pier. These potential
improvements are part of the overall redevelopment effort for the West
Waterfront area. Wisconsin Coastal Manag t Program grants and a
Stewardship grant have been received mplementation of public
improvements, but the actual construction wi depend upon tax increment
financing from new private development. If rivate development occurs,
the proposed park improvements could occur 2017.

in 2011

21. Woods West Park ;

This is a neighborhood park on th ,':'S\}gcquired from the

nberland Avenue, on

ty’'s west side tha

rchard.” This park has a gravel
ball and playground equipment.

s that are not found in many
on area consists of five acres
narrow strip of land along the north side
eenah Avenue. This park provides a

y School

ntary<School is located on Willow Drive-on the City's west side.
The total school: is 10.9 acres and most of the land is used for playground
and recreation/op space purposes. The facility includes modular play
equipment, along with surfaced area for basketball and other court games.
There is a trail and a creek that winds through the partially wooded property. In
conjunction with the adjoining 5-acre Woodside Wildlife Preserve, the property
serves as a neighborhood park and playground, in addition fo its school function.

Sawyer Elemei

24. Sunrise Elementary School
This facility is situated at the northwest corner of Rhode Island Street and South
151 Avenue. The fotal school parcel is about three acres, of which

15




approximately half is used for playground and recreations. In addition to the
students, the playground serves the surrounding neighborhood. It includes a
variety of play apparatuses and basketball court. The playground is adjacent to
the Memorial Athletic Complex, which provides athletic fields for both the school

and overall community.

25. T.J. Walker Middle School and Sturgeon Bay High School
The City’s middle school and high school are located together on Michigan Street

between 1211 and 14™ Avenues. The buildings and parking area take up much of .

the site, but there is about six acres of recreational. property in the north part of
the school property. This area contains three te courts and a large open field
used as a practice facility for soccer and foo

26. Memorial Athletic Complex
The school district also owns a port
directly across Michigan Street. Tl
under the City owned facilities (#12

Athletic complex located
cilities within that property are described

27. Crossroads at Big
Crossroads at Big Creek'i
the city fimits of Sturgeon B
Utah Streets. Crossroads
outdoor expetier i
and backgrou

nd. nature preserve located within
y 42-57 between Michigan and
nducts research and provides
wardship in learners of all ages
hree preserves — Crossroads’
Ida Bay Preserve — and
oods, ands, meadows, creek and
de hiking and running trails, groomed
assist kayak launch. The Collins Learning
space as well as exhibits and an
‘Creek is home to the Door Peninsula
Leif Everson observatory as well as the Door
X eritage Village. Crossroads at Big Creek is donor-
supported non-profit. organization open every day at no charge. For more
' ee www crossroadsatbigereek.org

28. John Mil y Park

John Miles County” Park is situated oh the City's east side along North 14"
Avenue. Total size of the county owned land is 65 acres, but the Door county
Senior Center and former Door County Highway Shop use up about nine acres,
leaving about 56 acres for recreational purposes. The park is dominated by the
Door County Fairgrounds, which hosts the county fair each August. The park
also contains Thunder Hill Raceway with races occurring each Sunday night
during the summer. In the northern part of the park there are three soccer fields

that are used by the local youth leagues.

16




29. Ahnapee State Trail
Ahnapee State Trail is a recreational trail originally established over the former
Ahnapee and Western Railroad right-of-way. The trail spans about 30 miles,
connecting Sturgeon Bay to Algoma and then on to Casco. it is used for hiking,
biking, horseback riding and snowmobiling. The trail enters Sturgeon Bay from
the south at Wilson Road. There is a trail head with parking on Neenah Street
just south of the Sturgeon Bay Industrial Park. There is a City trail extension that
follows a path leading north to connect with Cherry Blossom Park and then into
the City’s west side downtown, ending at the intersection of Lansing Avenue and
Green Bay Road. Total length of the Ahnapee Trail.within the City limits is about
2.5 miles.

30. Big Creek Property ‘
The Big Creek property is owned by

Resources and is comprised of m
Creek. Tota! size is about 20 acr
popular fishing site and provides pro

31, Strawberry Creek Property
The Wisconsin Department 0
80 acres of property loca
to Strawberry Creek. Public'f
December 31% w

s has a Iong—terrﬁyeasement on
Lane. It provides public access
from September 1 through

h .
3 acres of land on the south side of the
ust, retaining 50 acres for future use by
erty as the “Sturgeon Bay Ship Canal ‘
vhict grown'ito 445 acres through an additional
erve has 2 es of rustic frails as well as 500 feet of
shoreline at the end of Lake Lane. It is open to the public
ch- as hiking, snowshoeing, cross country skiing,
types’ of hunting. There are two parking lots,
enic overlook with a commanding view of the canal and

e

birdwa

This 11.5 acre park which is located on the north end of the Sturgeon Bay YMCA
Program Center at 1900 Michigan Street is owned and operated by the Door
County YMCA. The park is open free to the public and no membership is
needed fo use the park. Entry to the park'can be made from the YMCA parkin%
lot, or via two main entrances at 19! Avenue and 19" Place and also 19

Avenue and lowa Street.

The land for the park, and the improvements which have been made, were the
result of a 2013 gift from Ellsworth and Carla Peterson. The park space includes:

17




two youth sports fields, a mini amphitheater, a pavilion, three quarter miles of
walking paths, a prairie garden, public restroom and a KABOOM! Playground.
The $100,000 KABOOM! Baylake Bank Playground was built with private
donations and was constructed in one day by 190 volunteers. Over 100 trees
and bushes representing 18 types of plantings have been added to the park site.
Dogs on leashes are permitted on the park grounds.

34. Ice Age Tralil
As of 2020 Sturgeon Bay has become a designated lce Age Trail Community.
There is nearly five miles of the Ice Age Trail within, the city limits. It enters the
City on the Ahnapee State Trail at the City’s southernmost point. The trail follows
streets through the industrial park prior to re he down town area. The trail
weaves through the West Side Business e it heads north out of the
City to the trailhead in Potawatomi Park ’

i8




TABLE 1
SUMMARY OF EXISTING RECREATION AREAS

MUNICIPAL FACILITY ACRES FUNCTION

1. Bay View Park 27 Neighborhood Park

2. Bullhead Peint ' 1.3 Specialized Recreation

3. Cherry Blossom Park . 5.6 . Neighborhood Park / Playground

4. Eastside Waterfront Walkway/ Specialized Recreation

Stone Harbor Marina

5. Franke Park _ 6.5 Neighborhood Park

6. Garland Park : Neighbwhood Park

7. Graham Park/Eastside Dock ecialized Recreation

8. Lawrence Big Hill Park

9. Little Creek Parkway

cialized Recreation / hborhoed Park.

10. Market Square

14. Martin Patk Neighborhood Park

12. Memorial Athletic Complex _Athletic Play Field

13, Nautica! Drive Launch Specialized Recreation

14. Otumba Park ghborhood Park / Playground

. Sawyer Park " Specialized Recreations / Neighborhood Park
- Specialized Recreation / Neighborhood Park

Specialized Recreation / Neighborhood Park

. Sunsst Park: 44 163.2 Comimunity Park / Neighborhood Playground

19, Westside Field_ . ' 33 Athletic Play Field

20. Woestside Waterfrol Specialized Recreation

21. Woods West Park 4.8 Neighborhood Park / Playground
22, Woodside Wildiife Preserve 5.0 Neighborhood Park
23. Sawyer Elementary School 12.7 Neighborhood Playground
24, Sunrise Elementary School 3 Neighborhood Playground
26. T.J. Walker Middle Schoolf )

. Sturgeon Bay High Schacl 15.7 Athletic Play Field

19




27.
28.
29,
30.
3.
32.
33.
34.

35.

Memorial Athlstic Complex (Schoot Portion)
Crossroads at Big Creek

John Miles Fair Park

Ahnapee Recreation Trall

Big Creek Property

Strawberry Creek Property

Sturgeon Bay Canal Property/Beach
YMCA Community Park

lce Age Trail

8.0
200
56
2.5 miles
200
80.0
30
5.0

5.0 miles

20

Athletic Play Field
Specialized Recreation
Spacialized Recreation / Athletic Play Field
Specialized Recreation
Specialized Recreation
Specialized Recreation

Specialized Recreation

ighborhood Park f Playground

Specialized Recreation




}

=T

Map 1. City of Sturgeon Bay Outdoor Recreation Facilities
= , o —— - .t

H

\ !
Tewa el Sterguan B2Y )\,\

s 0 e ﬁr_—\l‘

-

Tapm of frvassspl !

[ — %A__#

Foam oSO Bry l

=

j! T i QR

l

s

.

Bay Vigw Pak

Hulltszad Point

Cheny Blossom Pak .

Eael Side Walesfront WatkwaysSlone Hasbar Mazdm
Fanke Park

Gariani Faak

. GrEham ParkEsst Side Waterat
. Lawrenics Big HIE Park

Ll CreeX Parkway

10, Markef Squara

11 Marlin Pk

10 P e bR

23, Sawyer Elementary Schonl

24 Sumtsa Hementary Schicol

75, Surmat Elementaty Schask

6, T.J, Walker Midge Schonlisimann Bay High Seheot
27. Memoial afiels Complex (Sehaat Partitay

98, Crossvads at Bl Creek

21

Furidipat Cutdpor Recrealion Faclbles

12. Memedlal Afhlels Complex [City Porian)
13. Naulle Diive Laumch Ramp
14. Olumbg Park

15. Sawye Hak

15. Shial Roat Hog Fark

17. Bkals Park

18, SunsatPak

19. Vesk Sita Fled

], Vest Side Walarot

21. Vicous West Park -

22. Weaorsida Wildife Preseive

| Oiher Plk Oulgosr Remeation Faziifes
;

28_ Johin Mikes Falr Fak
30, Ahnapse Recraation Trak

3. Eg Creek Popery

a2 Eil%wberr'j Cresk Propesty

33, Cand Prupery Beagh

34, YAICA Commimty Park

35 Ahrmpes Recrealion Tralllce Afe Tk

36 Tea AgeTral December 22, 2020




OUTDOOR RECREATION NEEDS ANALYSIS:

An important part of outdoor recreation planning is a faciliies needs analysis. For
Sturgeon Bay the needs analysis is considered in two ways. First, total amount of per
capita parkland for each category of parks is reviewed against national standards.
Secondly, the geographic distribution of various park types and their service areas are
examined to see how well they serve the major residential parts of the City.

A. Acreage Analysis

-in assessing the park needs of
eri adjusted over time based upon
acteristics. The National

Various acreage standards have been developed
a community. These figures have generally,

Recreation and Parks Association has,
neighborhood parks for each 1000 people i

7 acres of total park land with at
5 acres of community park land.
ned parkland in the Gity, along with over
fagilities. Even in the specialized recreation

, nélghb hood playgrounds, community parks and
/ 'si\dering Sturgeon Bay’s tourist and summer resident
erved with parkland from an overall acreage standpoint.

playgrounds, the City has 68.7 acres that are classified
grounds. This figure easily meets the recommended
ood parks.

including the eler
as neighborhood
minimum acreage fo

The City's lone community park, Sunset Park, contains about 44 acres plus about 19
acres for Bradley Lake. Using the standard 5 acres per 1000 population, the City
should have a minimum of 48.5 acres. Hence, the City is slightly fow on community
park acres if Bradley Lake is not included, but above the recommended acreage if the
lake is included in the total. It is worth noting that large nearby recreational facilities
such as Potawatomi State Park and the previously discussed Crossroads at Big Creek
also provide some of the functions of a community park.

22




The overall conclusion from the acreage analysis is that the City currently exceeds the
recommended acreage for overall parkland and for neighborhood parks. Itis right about
the recommended acreage for community parks, meaning that as the City grows,
planning for another community park should be considered.

B. Service Area Analysis

Because a quantitative measurement says nothing about:the diversity ‘and location of
the facilities available, its value is limited in :m:ing whether residents are
adequately served by the existing acreage. Servic iteria are used to assess the
distribution of recreation areas in the City. It ther the parks are properly
dispersed throughout the City and whether
setved by parks.

The service area for a neighborhood parl{ ) ighb ound is % mile
_radius. This distance is relativ hildven to walk or bike. Because
many of the park users are wa fective service area is limited by
ies of water. Thus, in these
rk's ¢ liire adjustment. Ideally, all
ould be withi iile of a public outdoor recreation

cases, the actual size of a pa
residential areas of the. Cify

*of the parks and other outdoor recreation
&ntial regions that are not near a facility.
screation facilities within Sturgeon Bay are
areas under served. Most of the residential areas

that are n
North 121
west side.

land Heights Manufactured Home Park on the extreme
served area that is closer to the center of the City are
portions of the OS? _Fd\ Avenue/Ridgeway Drive/Purves Lagoon/Circle Ridge region on
the City’s west side “of these underserved areas are waterfront or large lot
regions where the need for public open space is less acute and some of these regions
are served by private common open space or recreation facilities.

Neighborhood Parks

The service area analysis also examined the distribution of certain types of outdoor
recreation facilities, namely neighborhood parks, neighborhood playgrounds and
community parks. Map 3 iooks at the parks that are classified as neighborhood parks.

23




Sunset Park, though considered a community park, is included since it also provides
neighborhood park functions. The analysis shows that the areas closest to downtown
on both the east and west sides are well served by neighborhood parks, but that
outlying areas, particularly on the east side, are under served.

The northernmost portion of the City (area 1), which includes North 11" and 12" Places
and a portion of Bonnie View Drive, is not served by a neighborhood park. Given that
there is adjoining land planned for future residential development, this region should be
considered for a neighborhood park. '

Avenue 1o the east. This small area of fand is ;9""
and is not served by a neighborhood park;

neighborhood park.

i Avenue also ppears to lack a
derserved as it appears. There

Area 3 to the south of Michigan
neighborhood park. However,

of play fields, Sunrise
j7and Little Creek Parkway
er, these facilities provide the various
functions that a neighborhood ;- though none are technically considered as

residents.
Elementary Schoo

4257 (area on ins no neighborhood park. This portion -
 settled. and there are several large preserved tracts that
bads at Big Creek, the DNR’s Big Creek property

it would be better to yithin these existing open spaces for neighborhood recreation
facilities rather than purchase additional land.

On the west of Sturgeon Bay, there also are several residential areas not served by a
neighborhood park. The homes along North Duluth Place (area 5) are not near a
neighborhood park, but are adjacent to waters of Sturgeon Bay and Bullhead Point, a
specialized recreation area. Thus, the need for a park in this vicinity is not apparent at

this time.

24




Purves Lagoon and Circle Ridge residential areas are wedged between the bay and the
highway (area 8). Thus, this area is isolated from the City’s parks. It also is almost fully -
developed so there is little opportunity to acquire land for a municipal park. Purves
Lagoon Subdivision-does contain about two acres of waterfront common open space for
use by its residents. Area 6 is not considered a high priority area for development' of a
municipal park.

Tacoma Beach Road (area 7) is the third waterfront area on the west side that is under
served by a neighborhood park. Similar to area 6, this region contains a number of
seasonal residents and is fairly isolated from the re & City. Most lots have water
frontage and, thus, the overall need for a neighborho k serving area 7 is not great.

(area 8) for a future neighborho
Clay Banks Road that are expec

development. Unles
County Justice Center i

he service 1e City's neighborhood playgrounds, which include
‘play apparatuses, the three public elementary schools and the YMCA
Peterson Park. fairly similar to that of the neighborhood parks. Thus,
for the most part, the.conclusions are the same as stated above. There is just one
additional underserve i note. The Sawyer Subdivision off of Clay Banks Road is
a development area near Franke Park, but the facility is devoted to natural area and
passive recreation only. Thus, as Sawyer Subdivision and surrounding lands continue
to receive new homes, a neighborhood playground becomes needed. One possibility is
to place a new neighborhood park and playground between this development and the
Sand Hill Subdivision area, thus serving both areas that currently lack a playground.

A

the parks with.

25




Community Park

" The two mile setvice area for Sunset Park, as seen in Map 5, covers neatly all of the
east side and the bulk of the west side’s residentially developed area. Thus, the
conclusion is that Sturgeon Bay is still well served by its only community park. The
southeast area of the city is beyond the desired. service fimit. This region contains
several large vacant parcels that are planned for future residential subdivisions within
the City’s comprehensive Plan. As this area {and the City as a whole) grows, another
community park will be warranted. Ideally, the new park would be situated in the
southeast area to balance Sunset Park and provide fvice to this area. '

26




Map 2. Service Area for All Parks & Outdoor Recreation Areas

S) peoren

) Tc?,W_ri g f éévastrpol ,’, /
2
N

L

of
Sturgeon Bay

N

L.,\._?

Sty _r_ge‘on Bay.

of a nelghborhood park or other puiblic facility that is available for outdoor recreation. The 0.5 mile
service radius is reduced in some Spots due to the access barriets of the bay and Highway 42-57.

This map shows the existing residential areas of the Clty 6f Sturgeon Bay that are nat within 0.5 mile

Major Residetial Area Not Within 0.5 mile
of Public Outdoar Recreation Area

[T 9.5 ile Servics Radius
B Public Outdoor Recreation Atea

Octaber, 2015

27




3, Service Area for Neighborhood Parks

|

This map shoiws ihe existirig residential areas of the Gity of Sturgeon Bay thiat are fot within 0.5 mile

of a heighborhood park. The 0.5 mile service radius is reduced in some spots due to the access
barriers of the bay and Highway 42-57.

0.5 Mile Sefvice Area Majof Residéntlal Area Uriderservid by Neighbortiood Park

Nelghborhaed Park

October, 2015

28




Map 4. Service Area for N

eighborhood Playgrounds

evasiopol

_ Townoff
Nasgwauppe

:

)

. Towm of
Nasewaupee

This ap shows fhe existing residental dreas of the Clty of Sturgeon Bay that are not within 0.5 mile

df a neighborhood playg
gpots due 1o the access

0,5 Mle Radius for Neighitborhood Playgrou

: - Municipal and.Pu_'b_Eiq School Playgrounds

rairid {clty oF public school). The
barriers of the bay and Highway 42-

mile service radius is reduced in somie

—

Major Residenfial Area Underserved

nds by NeighbHisod Playgioliid

Oclober, 2015

29




Map 5. Service Area for Community Park

of Se\f'aﬁ’.tppc"\

Tow '

6
//Sfﬁge;n Bay

J Town
| of
Nasgwatipee

This thap shows the existing residential areas of the City of Sturgeon Bay that-ate not within-2 riles
of & community park (Sunset Park). The 2-mils service radils is modified on the West side of the
oity to accétint for the bridge crossing of the bay,

Eommunity Park (Sunset Park) Mefor Residential Area Underséived by Comintinity Park

O 5-Mile Service Radius for Sunset Park

Oclober, 2015

30




RECOMMENDATIONS:

This section of the Qutdoor Recreation Plan identifies policies and park improvements
that the City should strive to meet during the course of the next 5-year planning petiod.
Certainly, not all of the recommendations can be implemented during this time frame,
but by listing them it should keep the City moving forward as opportunities present
themselves. By including projects within the plan it also makes them eligible for
potential grant funding.

hdations for establishing new
rograms affecting the City’s
o . .

mmendations for existing

This section is broken into three parts. First, the rec
parks are presented. Next, the general policie
outdoor recreation facilities are outlined. Fina
parks and recreation facilities are listed.

A. New Parks

ould eventuaiuly be established to serve the
Drive, Gordon Road, 14™ Avenue and

sting neighborhood. A future neighborhood park could
west:side of 8" Avenue if the opportunity presents itself. -

also be situated on't

Southeast Region - This region includes the muliifamily residences along Oxford
Avenue, the Sand Hil and Sawyer subdivisions and potential new residential
development along Clay Banks Road and Division Road. |t is entirely within the current
City limits and has great capacity for growth. Thus, it is a priority area for creating a
neighborhood park. ' :

Several possible locations exist. Among them is the land along Samuelson Creek,
_ immediately east of Sand Hill Subdivision (Ridgeway Drive). This location would be

31




close to the apartments on Oxford Avenue and the creek would provide a natural
amenity. This location is fairly secluded, making convenient access a concern.

Another suggested site is located on the west side of Division Road immediately south
of its junction with Clay Banks Road. The Wisconsin DNR recently acquired this 4.7
acre parcel as part of the project to extend the Ahnapee Trail through this region to the
Bay View Bridge. The land is more than needed to accommodate the trail and plans for
the remainder have not been determined yet. '

Two other potential locations would be on either side of Division Street. These sites

could poteritially be part of a large residential deve nt. The proposed extension of
the Ahnapee Trail runs across both of these parcelsymakin a future neighborhood park
that much more accessible, similar to Cherry Blossom Park :

e City is within
park — Sunset
age of the community park is
unity park should eventually be
jnificantly. A large new park
the existing Sunset Park and

gion whe;e another community park in
ested region includes the City-owned
d.one day be converted to park use.

Policies;‘and Programs
'specific to any individual park.

and facilities. Bec _
limited, existing park” Hould continue to be used effectively. The City should

support and facilitate, e appropriate, the relationship established between the
school and park systems. Adaptivé reuse of existing facilities should be considered to
meet an increase in demand for park and recreation facilities.

Seek the continued development of youth, teen and senior citizen facilities and

services. The City should help to ensure the recreational needs of these groups are
met for the future. Where appropriate, the City should assist or support such programs.

32




Tm}m

ypfeaon Bay

Nasewalipes ‘ i

,, J . Towin of|Sturgeon Bay

.

This map shows possibls areas for establishing neighborhood parksplaygrounds in the thrge priority

d for each Tegion and other potential ldcations also exist, The
ty where a future community pak should be considered.

regicns, Onily ofe location is rige

map also shows the g

‘k Pofenfial Neighbofhood Park/Playground Reglon for Future Community Park

Ootober, 2015

33




The development of a Youth Center, either through the City or private organization
should be considered.

The design and improvement of existing and new park and recreation facilities
should incorporate pedestrian and bicycle routes. Park improvements should
provide an approptiate right-of-way through the park for use by cyclists and pedestrians
and should include rest room locations, potable water and other facilities of convenience
for cyclists, pedestrians and nearby residents. In addition, safe routes to parks should
be implemented through sidewalks, bike lanes or other méasures, as appropriate.

new activities. The City
needs fo continual cilities. Obsolete activities or
equipment should: ilities as warranted. Recently,
the City has added'h pit: e goff to its inventory and ofher activities
could also be added or'de ' '

uring the planning period the City should investigate the
‘water or splash park or outdoor swimming pool.
y.implemented in other communities and could be
a major draw: rs. The facility could also simply be a spray
fountain or other ss intensive facility that would be an additional amenity within one of
the existing parks.

Continue water weed ng program. The City currently harvests and disposes of
water weeds during the summer months to enhance recreational boating and swimming
opportunities and generally'improve the appearance of the bay. This program should
be continued and the City should seek to ensure adequate access points, disposal sites
and greater efficiencies in the program. The City should promote erosion control
measures and storm water management throughout the City in order to reduce nutrient
levels in the water that support the aquatic plants. The aquatic management plan will
be updated in 2016.

34




Work with School District, service organizations, sporting associations and other
entities regarding improvements and upkeep for the parks. By partnering with such
groups as the Boy Scouts, Jaycees, Rotary Club or Master Gardener's,-the City can
take advantage of additional expertise, fund-raising ability and support of park facilities
and programs. The City has received support from various groups and individuals in -
the past and this had led to specific improvements in the parks or to support of various

recreational programs. \

and Recreation Department

Use recycled materials. Whenever possible the Park:
/ements and programs.

should continue to use recycled materials for its impre

Continue to plant trees and other vegetation i
its tree replacement program, both within the

benefits. In larger parks, the City coul
such as prairie restoration or wetland areas.

ection across Michigan Street between the north
the walkway by making improvements to the existing
aanun erpass of the Michigan Street Bridge, if feasible

hing platforms on the north side of train spur

o Install bike racks ,
o Acquire shore front property on the north side of Juniper Street between Bay

View Park and Otumba Park

Builhead Point
o Erect entrance sign
¢ Update signhage
« Make improvements to allow for easy kayak/canoe access

35




« Install picnic facilities
« Install handicap fishing / observation platform

Cherry Blossom Park
+ Acquire land to the south via a land swap idea (excess land at Hudson / lthaca to

Schartner for land immediately south of the park) See Map 7
« Upgrade the electrical in the shelter
o Consider allowing portions of the west end of the park fo return to a meadow

e Make a sand volleyball court

East Side Waterfront / Stone Harbor Marina
+ Improve lighting for marina and waterfront
« Review parking needs and if neces
the park or on nearby properties
¢ Repair sidewalk behind Stone Harbor
« Consider placing a piece of artin the
Update lighting

Franke Park

encourage ad
Continue tom

this park - ‘
ie north if appropriate adjacent parcels become available
g Hill (Grotto) Park

Graham Park / East Side Waterfront
s In conjunction with the redevelopment of the PBI Shipyard consider the
reconfiguration of park properties within the waterfront area via property swaps or
potential land acquisition
« Provide picnic facilities
« Improve landscaping
« Prepare to accept maintenance of gifted park improvements

36




. : Jdesuoy e sassaidxe: A : ¥
seans requeod: , o308 53 Aol INg “selEpUneg J0EXS: gog Lo
z&m_uwcmE_wﬁﬂm:mﬂ%mwuwwﬂmﬂw i o oo 3 31 uomiod seioa S b A0 %nww_mwﬁwﬂ o M_wn__uﬂ:xwm% o 1o UNES
o 10.U0RI0d B ACEISL ‘LINOS BU.0F LBUN uolsUBdxa M2 104 SpuE| o} sBLELIXa Ul JuaLIdoEASD SIMyt e ror oo don
up Jo'usiped e Agareum ‘ynoseuy.of teumo:ipedoud Buluofoe auy _u:mj.>mm.to.mm..__2mupowa_u.m&m%%im%ﬁwammﬁmﬁmwﬂmmmwﬁwﬂﬂmm Mﬁ% B‘Mnc,m_.b_o
. . 0.AJL Al el et ‘e smoysideu syl

008: oge - 0ok
_ J 0oy ooz, ool :
oi07 beqop eeaden; oA %o diysreump:Ano Bunsixg.

" Uoisuong jo9SRImnd

WALG ML

2] UoisUB Xz e JGHEUMO
Buioipy: LY 24

S A e Wossalg
/ 2 Aasmug Bunsag [

S. Larising Avenue
iifiaca Blage

8. Hudson A\}@nue

amBm.htmao._n_-ut_mn_”_EOmwo_m?msQ*oc‘oum:maxm__m_.Emyo,n_.N,am_.z |

37



- Lawrence Big Hill Park / Grotto Park

« Provide additional picnic facilities and playground equipment to serve the needs
of the neighborhood ' '

e Provide pedestrian access to the park from all adjoining public streets, including
Georgia Street, North 8" Avenue, North o™ Gourt, North 9" Avenue, North 10"
Place, North 11" Place and North 12" Avenue with a walking trail linking these
areas (See Map 8) ‘ -

¢ Make improvements to the pedestrian path between Big Hifi Park and Garland
Park including a crosswalk across 8™ Avenue and:téplacing steps up the hifl

« Develop a nature trail '

o Install signage at various park entrances

o Create and implement overall landscap,
natural state

s Consult a naturalist to help determi]

luding areas in unmowed

iture use

Little Creek Parkway
« Remove dead Ash trees and
s Plant new trees in area

Develop landscape plan

ccress to Little Crégi’i

Michigan Street and South 5™ Avenue
walkway '

Martin Park
o Add park hours to sign
¢ Consider adding STEM features to park
« Replace certain trees and make some additions to shrubbery
o Review parking needs and provide space on nearby properties, on the street or
in the northwest corner of the park
Improve turf to better accommodate heavy usage

s

38




S0z 18goI00

198)1S DNANd WIC)] 'SSIO0Y  stfmwmmem

Arepunog sied D

NA2THAVE

i

" Nd-NOSeRAIRP- - —

t

!

N gTH CT

|

RN

S | . V

.ﬁ

NBTHAVE.  —— o L

| ]

_______ )

T e LS WISHOID

Rlmn

|

f

]

|

il

i

Sllod $$820Y alland ->Jed litH Big eousime g dey

39



Memorial Athletic Field Complex
o Evaluate on-street parking in the vicinity of Jaycee Field and the Girls Litle
League Field to minimize auto / pedestrian conflicts in these congested areas
o Continue partnership with Sturgeon Bay High School by working on and
developing the Athletic Complex Master Plan:
o Improve parking for complex by paving or using concrete, install curb and
gutter and storm drains. ‘

o Improve Jaycee Field concession stand and bleachers.

o Close Quincy Street and convert to a parki garea
Develop a landscape plan for the entir ea to improve the aesthetics of
this large open recreation area
Move football field inside the currentrack field:and fence in
Provide play equipment in the soutfiwest part e complex
Move the press box and blea
Abandon South 14™ Avenue that runs through the ¢
be via Oregon Street and Quincy Street
‘Build two more softball.fields in the norf
Build more parking ‘spaces.in the cente
School
o Establish
o Establish stor

O

c ¢ 0 ¢

lex, access would

=ast corner of the Gomplex
f the complex and near Sunrise

o 0

Expal :

Expand the park by continuing to acquire appropriate adjacent parcels
~ Continue pl inment additions/fimprovements

« Update restroom sta

« Establish concréte plaza area

o Install a half wall for tennis ‘

« Plan for best use for newly acquired property on W. Locust St.

Sawver Park and Boat Launch
« Acguire a portion of the Roen parcel to the south of the park, if needed, for

additional boat trailer parking
« Install air conditioning and heating system in shelter, rental price could be

increased if used.

40




¢ Install additional lighting at the launch area

Shiloh Road Dog Park
+ Add restroom and shade structure
¢ Add dog watering stations
o Plant trees for added shade

Skatepark
« Install power and lighting to this area

« Add onto the parking lot

Sunsef Park and Boat Launch
o Develop handicapped accessible fis

. Contmue planting a varie
o [nstall permanent volleyba
Continue adding flower beds "

rea to provide for safer viewing
hind the outfield fence to protect vehicles and

« Assist with promotin leagues and events on social media

Westside Waterfront
o Complete the public improvements along the waterfront between Michigan Street

Bridge and Oregon Street Bridge.

« Add additional plantings along walkways

e Ensure a distinct delineation between public areas and private development
through changes in ground elevation, tandscaping or other means

« Enhance visibility and access to the waterfront through signage and gateway

elements.

41




o Mark area as part of the lce Age Trail.

o Promote Ice Age and Ahhapee Tralils, possible kiosk.

¢ Finish promenade

» Create name for park.

o Finalize park design while staying as close as possible to the West Waterfront Ad

Hoc Committee’s plan.

Woods West Park
e Plant a select number of fruit trees
s Create a walking trail
e Add a shelter with restrooms
« Create an ice skating ink
e Monitor the usage of the park fo co
e Additional tree plantings

Woodside Wildlife Preserve =
s Coordinate use and improve
Gardener's Club :

o Continue improvem

ently ends at the corner of Lansing Avenue and Green

1d be extended from its current termination point to the

Sawyer Park Boat Launch located at Oak and Neenah Avenue

o Assist DNR and Door county in extending the trail from the current frail head on
South Neenah Avenue to the Bay View Bridge — would require private property to
be acquired

Ice Age National Scenic Trail
o Extend path through J. Baudhuin property to relocate trail from road right-of-way

« Install signage to clearly mark route throughout the City.

42




Memorial Drive Scenic Easement
e Create a public walkway along the southwesterly side. of Memorial Drive to

connect the walkway at the PBI Shipyard redevelopment to the Ahnapee Trail
extension at the Bay View Bridge

YMCA Peterson Park

« The YMCA park master plan has provisions o add sand volleyball courts, an ali-
weather sports court and a splash pad as funding becomes available.

43




Executive Summary

Date: 18 January 2021
Title: City of Sturgeon Bay Farm and Craft Market Policy

Background: The City’s Farm and Craft Market has never had a true policy. There are some
rules posted on the application but these were never approved and could be changed easily by the
Director of Municipal Services. [ used POLCO to conduct a survey in the summer of 2020 to get
an idea of what the customers of the market expect or would like to see there.

The policy has made very few changes, the most significant change is that there is no resale of
produce. This would mean that vendors cannot purchase peaches, blueberries, and asparagus (to
name a few) from states and sell at the market. The smvey shows that customers
overwhelmingly prefer the produce to come from Door and neighboring counties. I opted to go
with a 75 mile limit, this is due to a couple of our current vendors coming in from the Manitowoc

area. It is not my attempt to push vendors away.

Proposal: I propose the approval of the new policy as presented

Fiscal Impacts: Noﬁe

Recommendation: Staff fully supports and recommends approval of the newly drafted City of
Sturgeon Bay Farm and Craft Market Policy.

Prepared By: - Date:
Mike Barker
Municipal Services Director

-Reviewed By: Date:

Josh Vanl .ieshout
City Administrator




Sturgeon Bay’s Farm and Craft Market Palicy

Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to outline the City’s policy on the Sturgeon Bay Craft and Farmers
Market. This policy must be followed by ali vendors.

This policy is set by using existing policy and results from an advertised survey.

Location and Hours: The Sturgeon Bay Craft and Farmers Market is located at 421 Michigan Street in
“Market Square” and on Nebraska Street between 4™ Ave and 5™ Ave. The market runs from the first

Saturday in June through the middle of October.

Hours: Set up: 5:00 A.M.—8:00 A.M.
Market hours: 8:00 A.M.—12:00 P.M.

Due to safety reasons, the parking lot is closed at 8:00 —12:00 and no vehicles may be moved

during this time.

Site Description: There are a total of 155 individual spaces on a paved surface. There are also 13 spaces

that are situated on the grass area.

What May Be Sold Without a License :

‘s Fresh Produce

e Handmade arts, crafts, and clothing

e Honey and maple syrup

e Cut flowers and herbs

s Potted plants, shrubs, and trees

. Canned products that are naturally acidic, or acidified by pickling or fermenting.

Canned products that may be sold without a license:

The products must have an equilibrium pH of 4.6 or lower. This is a measure of acidity. The lower the

pH value, the more acidic the food.
' Signs and labels required for canned products that may be sold without a license:

e Sign at the point of sale, stating, “These canned goods are homemade and not subject to state
inspection.”
e Product labels must include:

o Name and address of the person who did the canning

o Date of canning

o Statement— “This product was made in a private home not subject to state licensing or
inspection.”

o Allingredients in descending order of prominence, including the common name for any
ingredient that originates from milk, eggs, fish, shellfish, tree nuts, peanuts, wheat or
soybeans. These are ingredients that can cause severe allergic reactions in some
people, who must be able to recognize when they are present.




Sturgeon Bay's Farm and Craft Market Policy

For questions about home-canned foods please contact the Department of Agriculture, Trade and
Consumer Protection Licensing specialists at (608) 224-4923 or email datcpdfslicensing@wi.gov

Examples of products allowed it they meet the pH requirement:

s Pickled fruits and vegetables (not refrigerator pickles)
e Sauerkraut

e Salsas

+ Chutneys

» Jamsand jellies

e Applesauce

What may be sold with a license:

e Organically grown produce

¢ Bakery items

e Jams and jellies

e Foods not listed above requiring a Food Sales Establishment License

¢ Hot foods prepared onsite

e Frozen packaged meats

» Dairy products

e Low acid/acidified foods such as canned vegetables, pickles, salsa, etc.

e Ciders and fruit juices produced by seller
e Specialty drinks such as coffee and teas. No canned or bottled drinks other than water.

Labeling Requirements:

All baked goods and processed products are to be labeled in compliance with all applicable federal and
state regulations and must include:

o Common name of the product

e Net weight or volume statement

s A list of all ingredients using the common name of each ingredient in decreasing order of
predominance by weight 7

e The name, address of the manufacturer, packer, or distributer

e Nutrition information, unless exempt '

o Allergen information

For questions about licensing please contact the Bepartment of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer
Protection Licensing specialists at (608) 224-4923 or email datcpdfslicensing@wi.gov




Sturgeon Bay’s Farm and Craft Market Policy

Produce Vendors:

o  All produce must be home grown by you, a member of your family or your em ployee,
» - An employee may sell products for a grower at the grower’s booth or at their own booth.
¢ Ifavendor sells any produce from a different grower, the vendor must be an employee of the

grower. This is to eliminate vendors from reselling purchased prod e f'of employment
fo pp u nd sig r): In this case, the

vendor must post a sign giving the grower credit for the produce.

Who can sell:

¢ Produce re-sellers (of any type) will not be permitted to sell at the market.

o At the discretion of the Director of Municipal Services, one local {Sturgeon Bay based) non-
profit, civic, church or school group per week may participate in the market at no cost as long as
they are selling bottled water and/or products that do not complete with those sold by a paying
vendor such as scout groups selling popcorn/cookies. If the group wants to sell products that
compete with the paying vendor, the standard booth fee will apply.

¢ Only those items listed on a vendar’s applicétion may be sold. If a vendor wishes to add anitem,
e-mail approval must be received from the Parks Department prior to offering that item for sale.
The market manager or representative is the final arbiter on the suitability of an item offered for
sale.

e To ensure a good diversity of products, the market manager may find it necessary to limit
participation of vendors who sell like items. However, no vendor is guaranteed of being the
sole vendor of an item. _

s - The market manager reserves the right to inspect the premises where products are grown or
processed at any time during the market season.

e Only vendors who have paid the required boath fee may sell. All vendors must have a current
application on file, including a copy of any required license(s) and a signed hold harmless
agreement. '

¢ The market focuses on food, food related items, and handmade crafts.

Market Spaces and Fees:

e When avendor asks for “one space” in the market it should be realized that “one space” is two
parking spaces within Market Square or two 10’ spaces against the curb on Nebraska St.

e One space in the grass is a 12’ X 12’ square.

o A “half space” is one parking space in Market Square or one 10’ space against the curb on

Nebraska St.
e Spaces do not have electricity. If a vendor requires electricity they may use a generator thatis

of the “whisper quiet” variety.
» Vendors may not sublet their space to another vendor.
» Spaces are not transferable




Sturgeon Bay’s Farm and Craft Market Policy

Vendors must furnish their own booth items such as tent, tent weights, tables and chairs.
Staking is prohibited, the use of tent weights are required at all times, 20lbs per leg.

Tents are prohibited if forecasted winds are 20+ mph.

When setting up, do not extend into adjoining spaces or beyond parking stall lines.

All products sold at the market must be displayed and sold in a manner which prevents
contamination. Vendor may be asked to remove any product not of high quality.

When the market is barricaded off at 8:00 A.M. nobod\) may enter or leave the market ina
vehicle until 12:00. Exceptions will be made on a casé by case basis due to emergencies.
Approval must be obtained from the attendant. If a vendor sells out of product early, they
must remain for the duration of the market.

If the Director of Municipal Services or designee closes the market for any reason, there is no
refund and vendors must feave. If a vendor chooses to stay, they stay at their own risk without

endorsement.
vendors will be assigned a space at a fee.

A half-space may be rented for the season at S
Daily will be $

A grass space may he rented for the season at $
Daily will be $

A full space may be rented for $
Daily will be S

Spéce rental fees must be p‘aid in advance for the seasonal spaces. Seasonal sbaces must be paid
by the due date listed on the application; this is typically around May 1% of that year. Since daily
spaces are typically only available on the day prior to the market, the fee may be paid on the
morning of the market. The fee must be dropped off at the farmers marlet attendant’s shed
prior to 8:00 A.M. on market day. Payment may be checkor cash in the exact amount.




Sturgeon Bay’s Farm and Craft Market Policy

Appendix 1
Proof of Employment

This document must be delivered to the Sturgeon Bay Parks Department prior to any vendor selling
produce from another grower.

Employer Name:

Employer Address:

City, Zip:

Telephone Number:

Employee Name:

Date of Employment:

Position:

Authorization to Sell Produce

| authorize the above mentioned employee to seli my produce at their booth in
the Sturgeon Bay Farm and Craft Market. | understand that they are required to
display my name along with my produce being sold. My signature is verification
that the vendor is not simply reselling produce but is an employee of the

grower.

Signature of Employer:

Signature of Employee:




10/8/2020

Polco

2% Polco

ACACA

AT AN

Sturgeon Bay Farmer's Market

Survey Results
FINAL

10/08/2020

hitps:ﬂpulcu.usfnfamenfcontanUe4c30055-3d6&4b13—aD2a-fcees‘J'173bbeIrepurt

120




10/8/2020 Polco

Do you live in Sturgeon Bay?

86% (68)

149% ()

99% (77}

" no; 1 have not. 19% (1)

How many times per season do you visit the farmer's market

21% (i6)
21% (16)

12% {9)

£1% {(31)

97% (75)

3% (2)

| Buying produce ‘Grown in other regions and résold hy 4 local vendor,

Intetnet based research shows that most customers visit farmers markets to purchase locally grown
produce and to support local farmers. By doing so it helps our neighbors and our local economy and
reduces the amount of fuels used to transport goods. What do you consider locally grown?

37% (2%

44% (35)

14% {19)

- IPY ‘Produce grovin within 100 miles and in neighboring states 5% (4)

Should a produce vendor be able o sell produce from another local farmer if they are an employee?

hips:fpak Infadmirfcontsntiedc30065-2dae-4b13-a02a-fcaes7i7 3bheirepod 220




10/82020 ' Polca

7% (37)

47% (37)

6% {9)

38% (30}

62% (49)

Should dogs be allowed at the market?

65% (51)

35% (28}

Would you like to see more hot food vendors at the market?

73% (58)

27% (21)

Have you been a vendor at the Sturgeon Bay Farmer's Market? If so, what have been some positive
aspects of the experience? What are some things that could be changed or improved? Please limit your
responses to 60 characters. '

No

nol

No

I am a curreni vendor. | sell a lot of my product to both locals and tourists and to repeats of both, soitisa 's_ucéessful market for me. 1
think sales tax numbers need to bs mandatory to keep vendors in that 2re serious about thelr business and those {hat aren't, out, Try

to get alf vendors inside the square, and reopen the street for customer parking. .

No
No
Na
Never been a vendot.

The farmers market should be moved to the west side waterfront. Or to a place where there is more space 1o grow., [t's the west sides
turn to host and reap the benefits from the casual shopping that happens during the market. The east side location is closterfobic
and is unsafe. Pecple are constantly j-walking and it is just a little bit of mayhem on busy days. | actually saw alady get hithy a cara
couple of years ago and almost die during the farmers market. The west side waterfrant would be a great place to host and grow the
market. Right on the water, big parking lots and sutrounded by less busy streets. The granary could be the center of it.

3120

hitps:Mpolco.usinfadminicontent Jadc30055-3d6c-4b13-a02a-Tcas87(73bhelreport




10/8/2020 Polco

There should be city representation at the market when open, great drversrty in preducts. Iocally grown produce only except peaches
and blusberries (items our customers want and cannot be grown locally) :

Retween 201i-2045 | had a information booth during World Breastfeeding Week (August 1-7) at the Farmers Market, to encourage
breastfeeding mothers. It was always a good expericnce.

Great space hetwee'n vendors, nice variety of goods sold.

No '

it's a great market

Al items must be locally grown.

Sturgeon Bay runs an excellent market one that 1 uae 453 sample of what markets shou!d 1ook Tke!
[ lo\re all the people that come. No dogs please

YES The peop|e from out of town and the State.

Reqmre masks or vendors and buyers - MASK MANDATE!

we kr[led the market open the gates to averyone so we can Justn‘y attendrng 2 sersous growers were' not al!owed and very upset

market the market batter downtown and locally

Some posrtwe aspects of being a vendor is that a lot of the remdents or those who attend the farmers market are frzendly
surrounding vendors are super friendly as well, S T I A

Very good so far. Have many vendars with ditferent produces and products With hot foods that make the farmer's market attractive
to tocal and near by consumers...

NO DOG! Other crtres have this and it works!l No-Dogt T here should he & Market Manager there also Make his hours Tuesday-
SaturdayI It is unsafe with dogs there, there haue been some ﬁghte with them | think itis more rmportant to make it’a Tamily. outmg
pEace than ha\nng ftasa dog park | Also shouid have a vendor meetmg before the 562801 S0 things can get ﬁgured_o t You just need
a good person that understands markets running the rnarket and go check out Ever Vendor to make sure they do grow averything. If
the personin charge new anythmg about flowers he would know you can't gave sunflowers in June! Think!

Promote the market have a C|ty employee on Staff from 7-12 Saturday s no dogs, had 8 dog tight two weeks aga

Yes, lalways felt good about bemg involved in ihe maeket
No

" Move the_ Farmer's_Marketto Third Avenue andmmake'the curfént parking lot location a\railab'le for parking,— . _
Yes, a positive aspect of the expetience has been seeing everything people sell, getting to know the other vendors, and honding with
them. | don't thlnk anything needs to be changed. :
{am acraft vendor hut but nota produce vendor, | think the market Is very Well run, 1 love the direct customer cantact. | also love
being abt_e to sell and pront from the labor of my hands.
No
No, [\ never been a vendor.
no |

if door county grown is requrre | think you : should altow all existing \rendors to gontinue. This change only affects one nationality, new ‘
vendors need to grow in door county resale only b[ueberrles and peaches nothtng else Very difﬁcult to grow these in qguaintly in door
county and the public really like these products. f

Any other additional comments, questions, or concerns?

No '

none .

Vendors should have been required to mask after July 4. 1 see a definite dectine in local cusiomers that usually come early- they aren't
showrng up: thes year.

Brlng more arts and cratts type vendors back Iike last year Thanks

Establish a year round market if possibletil

The dog issue has goiten way aut of hand in my opinioh..way t6o many dags with owners wio cant not propert_y handle them rn the
market atmosphére..and way oo many in number. Gtrierwise | love Satuiday Market. o R B

4/20

Hitps:#polsa, Facleni Ha4¢30065-3d6¢-4h1 3-202a-feae87i73bbakepor




10/812G20 Pelca

E love the arts & crafts vendors as well - it's always enjoyable to be able to see and support other [ocals' passions & hobbles. Having
the variety of vendors makes it a mare fun & |nterest|ng experience,

Craftefs should sell what they ‘make. Fartnets should séli only what they grow if I want to buy friits and uegetabtes not grown Eocally |
can go to a grocery store. :

Alowing dogs is a prime determining factor for us. No dogs allowed Is a visit killer. Also, allow food vendors, craft vendars, but allow

fresh produce as the primary focus, Itis after all, a farmers market.

PLEASE BAN DOGS FROM THE MARKET - twice a dog has nipped at my daughter while she was eating a brat purchased at the

market. it's not safe to have dogsin a tight area with small children. That's why they are not al!owed in playground areas e:ther Also
please bah dogs from Martin Park during concerts, That is also another annaying and unnecessary liability for the City.

Please require masks"l

In Ilght of all the ruEes and precautrons taken this vear, | did NOT cven make an attempt te attend the Sat. market this summer Mlssed )
it a LOT (it's one of the euents that make Door County 50 unlque and fun everyone is frlendly, relaxed and not focused on obeymg '
rules). The fact that questlon #8 was |nciuded In this survey bothers me - never experlenced or heard a report of a problem with any :
unruly pets (or peoplel) during any pre\nous years, If future "markets" don't revert back to the same scope {food, products. crafts.

ﬂowers, etc.) and atmosphere (musuc performers ]USt a general!y FRIENDLY and relaxed atmosphere), then these events may be self-
destructmg while people find somethmg else to do with their Sat. mornings. Want ' normal" back, nota re\nsed or S0~ caIEed "improved”
e\.'ent that overly concentrates on oorwmcmg the attendees that thmgs are tmally sanitized (as if they were dangerously ﬁlthy/germ— ‘

laden before). i

Haven't been to the Farmers Market this year due to CoVID, We are also part of a GSA and pick up our locally grown produce fromm -
their farm versus the market, i is working very well and huge shout out 1o Emerald Acres Farm on accommodating due to the

pandemic.

| have not attended the market in 2020 due to dogs hawng been bannéd.

The market could do without the crafts and jewelry. Locai frash or frozen meat, fish, fowl and similar products are good fit, but
prepared hot foods, hreads and the like don't befong at a farmer’s market.

More food trucksit!

i peaches and bluebersies are allowed In they should come directly from the grower NOT A PACKING HOUSE, or bought from a
middle man. Season should continue to end the last Saturday in October for those that sell potatoes, apples, squash and pumpkms
This yeats market was cuf two weeks short, [f the Ctty is going to send out rules and regulat:on they should be enforced

Open itupto prcducts that are made in Door County ’

| don't get too hung up on vendors selling nan- -local produce early in the summer, .g. corn and tomaloes. it allows me to get fresher
produce than | would get at the store. | belleve most vendors, It thay do use this practice, sell their own grown stuff once it can be
harvested. 'm really OK with that. It's up to you If you want o regutate that more, but 1 dor't think it needs to be over thought. | enjoy

what produce seems o be avaitable when | go. Thanks for all you de.

Great Iocation. Dog rule should be enforce.d. .

Pre Covid one of my fa_\rorite farmers and craft markets

Keeping yeatly vendars in same spat year after year so repeats can find,

NO

Sadly, as a vendor, sales for the year are significantly down

the CDC created covid pandemic Is almost over, but our economy may never recover with 30 mition out of work.and increasing.

No D.ogs! They are not good around food. No Dogs!

Been a vendor for a2 LONG time and things sure have changed over the past cauple of yearsl! I the ciiy of SB lsn't interasted In doing
the market pass it on to someone else that may be interested, maybe SB visftors center, gét your head out of your @55es this market
|s normaliy well attended by visitors and locals alike and want varlety of local produce, arts, Grafts and ready to eat foods.

They should be open until 1:00. Start later in the morning
No .

I'm glad to be going back to my original spot next year.

I also like seeing local crafts and miss those this year.

indoor in the winter

Make it more of an event to draw people in. Feature a local musician, have something fun for children, include health and wellness
hooths, heslthy food cholces, a learning activity for children, tourist information booth to highlight activities such as the Door County
Treasure Hunts, Geo-caching and family related activities. More local products to highlight businesses le. plzza by the slice, olis, syrup,

filtps:Hpoteo.usinfadminfcontenlie4c30085-3dBe-4b 1 3-af2a-fcael7i73bbeireport &i20




19ig/2020 Polco

Ity like to see a permanent fish market {or Farmers Market booth) on the West Side when the
for parking bicycles so we don't have to lock for the
possibly metal in the shape of a fish or

chorry products, bakery, etc. | would rea
waterfront is done. And, please put a bike rack somewhere or desighate a spot

nearest lamp post. Something crafted by a local artist would he great for our community,
something colorful. .

htlp5:h‘palcu.us.’n.'admln,’mntenﬂeAc:iOOS&Sd&o—4b13«a02a-(cae87ﬂ3bt|alreport 8§20




10/8/2020 Polco

Do you live in Sturgeon Bay?

Overview
86% (68)
4% (11)
Breakdowns
Gender
Respanses broken down by the gender of the respondent. Currently, most public data only supports male, female, and unknown,
Female
' 90% (9) 85% (17)

B Ho, i do ot 10% (1) 16% (3)

86% {42)

4% {7)
Age Range
Respanses hroken down by age of the respondent. Respondents for whom age are unknown are not inclisded in these breakdowns. )
30-39 -
i 100% (3) 100% (10)

0% 0%
60-69
100% (2} 160% (/)
0% B notdomat, AR 0%
unknown
75% (3) \ $1% (43)
25% (1} 19% (10}

hitps:iipolco.usinfadmin/content/ed 30065-306¢-4b13-a02a-fcae8 717 3bbelreport 7i20




10812020 Polco

Have you attended the Sturgeon Bay farmer's market?

Overview .
99% (77)
X Mo, 1 have not, 1%
Breakdowns
Gender
1
Responses broken down by the gender of the respondent. Currently, most public data only supports male, female, and unknown.
Female Male
100% (10) 1 100% {20)
0% ﬂ :[\Ju,lhauéfﬁp!. 0%
8% (47)
E No, | havs 'n‘nt_. T ' ) . 2% (1)
Age Range ;
Responses broken down by age of the respondent. Respondents for whom age are unknown are not Inclsded in these breakdowns, -
30-39 40-49
' 100% (3) 100% (10}
1 o, i havelhat. - S T T 0% B sid, 1 havanot. 0%
50-59 60-69
wo% 100% {7)
0% o 'hgo,l haue___r_mt; 0%
unknown
100% (4) - 98% (51)
0% B wotbavonat. AT L 2%

B Mo, { have hot.

hllps:rfpulco.usfnfadm'rnfoonian{.'edca0065-3560-4b13—anza-fcaea?nahbekepun




10i8/2020 Palce

How many times per season do you visit the farmer's market

Overview
218 (16}
21% (36)
12% (9)
&7% (37)
Breakdowns
Gender
Responses broken down by the gender of the respendent. Currently, most public data only supperts male, female, and unknown.
Female Mate
n 30% (3) . 25‘%; {5}
10% (9 35% (7)
0% 15% (3)
60% {6) 25% (5)
17% (8)
17% (8)
13% [}
56% (26)
Age Range
Responses braken down by age of the responident, Respondents for whom age are unknown are not included in these breakdowns,
30-39 40-4%
| : g 33% (1) 40% (4)
- 33% (1} §0% (&)
0% 169 (1)
33% (1) 0% (1)
50-59
1 100% (2) 0%
B 24 0% 14% (1)
s E o 14% ()
B 6ormore o ; o% 7% (5)
70-7%
| R IR . . 0% 17% (9)
I} 50% (2) 15% (8)
6% 13% (D)
50% {2} 54% (28)

hi!ps:ﬂpulco.us,’n!adminfcantenUMcSﬂﬂas-adSc:-n;bi&aoZa-fcaeaﬂ‘iabhefrepnn 9120




10/812020 Palco

What attracts you to the farmer's market?

Overview
t fr 57% (75)
o g i i 353
E Buyiha praduce grown in ofér reglons and resald by a local vendor. 3% (2) .
Breakdowns
Gender ‘
Responses broken down by the gender of the respendent. Currently, most public data only supports male, ferale, and ussknown,
Female
100% (10} 100% (20}
; r % 0%
+ lacal vendar, - -
unknown
98% (45)
B ‘Buylng prodice grovin in other regions and resald by a . 4% (2)
Tocal véndor. ) : o
Age Range
Responses broken down by age of the responrdent, Respondents for whom age are unkaown are not Included in these breakdowns.
30-39 40-45
A 100% 3) 100% {10}
A Euying p ._auc' 'ér_qw'n in 61._fh_é'r regi 0% 1 Buying produce grawn in dther reglons.and resold bya 0%:
2 Jecalvendok” . R “ " local vender, - o i
50-59
100% () 100% {7)
0% :‘ng_'ptgduéie giroum I other :réélién"- and resullci___i)y a 0%
focal vendor..” ST I
100% (4) 96% (49)
B suying pr{:dﬁhé grown in _d'lher_:réglhn's anej __resol:d_ bya ' 0% 4% (2)

Jacal vendor.

hips:iipoleo.usi/admin /e4c30065-2dée-4b13-a02a-fcasBTi73bhalaport 1020




10/8/2020 Palco

Internet based research shows that most customers visit farmers markets to purchase locally grown
produce and to support local farmers. By doing so it helps our neighbors and our local economy and
reduces the amount of fuels used to transport goods. What do you consider locally grown?

Qverview
37% (29)
449% (35)
14% €11
m duce growh within 1'i1():".r:'r'i.iles and in nelghboring states 5% (4}
Breakdowns
Gender
Respoﬁses firaken down by the gender of the respondent. Currently, most public data only supperts male, female, and unknown.
Female Male
' co%ie Ghr County ; 40% (8)
30% (3) r and neighboring counties . 40% (8)
10% (4)- duce growi within 100 s and within the state 15% (3)
0% n Pmduce grovin within 100 mi]es__aha in nelghboring states 5% (1)
31% {15)
neighbpring calinties 49% {24}
uice grown wﬁh.in 100 mites and within thej_s'ta_!__e 14% (7}
E Fraduge grown within 100 miles.élni:!_ In néiéhharipg states &% (3;)
Age ﬁange ‘ . .
Responses broken down by age of the respondent, Respondents for whem age are unknrown afe not included in these breakdowns.
30-39 40-49
in Doar County 3% (1) ' ity . 50% (5)
&7% (2) ] d 1,090 and neighboring c_d.u_'nties ' £40% (4)
A ﬁibdp_c;é growit Within 106 iniles and w.i.thi_n thestale ‘ 0% “Producé arown withl 100 miles and within the state 10% (1)
n P[qducé'gééwn within 100 miles and .ll.i nelghboring states 0% E Praduce growh wlt:hin:j' 10 jilles and in h‘gighhoring s.i'at"e_zg 0%
50-59 60-69
" : soecny (D 71% (5)
meighbaring counties 50% )] A Ptdducé'é;rt;wu in pq_or‘aﬁc@ neighboting counties 14% (1}
Praduce grown withih jqo riles and withln the state 0% E ‘Fr;f?_uc_e grown withl_:r:l'{oﬁ miles and within the stafe 14% (1)
D] 'I;raduqe'grbwn withiii 100 mites and in neighbhr_il_-lg__ é!aiés 0% B ‘P_r'_'oqu';:a grown within 100 mites andn neighboring states 0%

hllps:Ilpolco.us!n.'admln.’oontenUechODSMu'Sc-AM 3-a02a-feaeh7i73bbeireport 420




10/8/2020

70-79

I Froduce grown in Door Gounty
slghloiing cotinties

iles and within the state

b Pmduce grown within 100 miles and in neighboring states

hitp: Haolco.usiiadminfcontentiedc30085-3d6e. 4b13-a02a-fcaeB773bhelreport

0%

50% {2)

50% {2)

0%

Pclca

unknown

Praduce grown within 100 miles and within the state

B produce grown vithin 100 miles and in neightioring states

32% (17)

47% (25)

13% (7

BY% {4)

12720




10482020 Polco

should a produce vendor be able to sell produce from another local farmer if they are an employee?

Overview

Breakdowns

Gender
Responses brokan down by the gender of the respondent. Currently, most public data only supports male, femaie, and unknown.

Male

Female

20% (2)

80% (8)

No o - 0%

unknown
£9% (24)

b laheled as 1o what farmer 45% (22)

6% (3)

Age Range

Responses broken down by age of the respondent. Respondents for whom age are unknown are not included In these breakdowns.

30-39 40-49 .
33% (1)
&7% (2)
0%
50-59
100% (2)
B Yes, but the produce must be faheled as to what fa_'rm.ér 0% Wihat firmer
" rows the produce s
No S , 0%
unkiiowh
50% (2}
25% (1) be lahéfed as to whik farmer
25% (1)

nttps:palzo,usin/adminfoonient 4 5-3d5c-4b13-a02a-fcae8 77 3bbefrepon

must be labsled as to iuhat farme ..

47% (37)
47% {37}

6% (5)

559 (1)

35% (7

10% {2)

50% (5)

50% {5)

0%

% (1)

71% (5)

14% (1)

49% (26)

45% (24)

5% {3)

13/20




10/8/2020

Should a produce vendor be able to re-sell produce that they have purchased?

Qverview

Polco

Breakdowns

Gender

Respenses broken down by the gender of the respondent, Currently, most public data only supports male, female, and urknown,

Female

Age Range

Responses broken down by age of the respondent. Respondents for wham age are unknown are not incfuded in these breakdowns.

30-3¢

B v

hitps:ipoleo. usinfadmin/conientie4c30065-d5c-db 13-a02a-feae87i73bbalreport

10% (1}

90% (9)

41% (20)

59% (29)

0%

100% (3}

50% (1)

50% (1)

58% (2)

50% {(2)

Male

40-49

50-69

unknown

38% (30

62% {49)

45% (9)

55% (1)

30% {3)

70% {7}

29% {2}

1% (5)

42%{22)

-58% (31)

14120




10/8/2020

Should dogs be allowed at the market?

Overview

Breakdowns

Gender

Responses broken down by the gender of the respondent. Currenﬂy, most public data only supports male, female, and unknown.

Female

unknown

Age Range
Responises broken down by age of the respondent. Respondents for whom age are unknown are not Included in these breakdowns.

30-39

hitps:#poleo.usiniadminicontent/a4c30B5-3d6e-4bi3-a02a-fcaeB 717 3hbelreport

B0% {8)

20% {2)

63% {31)

37% {{8)

67% (2)

33% (1)

i00% (2)

0%

50% (2)

50% (2)

Polco

Male

40-49

unknown

5% (51)

35% (28}

0% (12)

40% (8)

60% (b}

40% (&)

86% (6}

14% (1)

$2% (33)

38% (20)

15/20




10182020 Pelco

-Would you like to see more hot food vendors at the market?

Overview
R R PR <Y
27% (21y
Breakdowns
Gender .
Responses broken down by the gender of the respondent, currently, mest public data only supports male, female, and unknown.
Female
90% (%) 80% (16)
10% (1 20% (4}
unknown
62% (33)
33% (16}
Age Range
Responses broken down by age of the respondent. Respondents for whom age are unknown are not included in these breakdowns.
30-39 40-49
n 7% (2) 90% ()
33% (1) 10% (1)
50-59 &60-69
100% @) 84% (6)
0% 4% (9
. unknown
75% {3) &89% (36}
25% {3} 32% {17)

hitps:#polco.usinfadminicontertia4c30065-3d6¢-4b13-a02a-eael773bhe/report 16/20




10/8/2020 Polco

Have you been a vendor at the Sturgeon Bay Farmer's Market? If so, what have been some positive
aspecis of the experience? What are some things that could be changed or improved? Please limit your

responses to 60 characters.

Responses

No

NG -

No

lama cu_fré_nt vendor. | sell a [ot of my prodtict to both locals and tourists and to repeats of both, so it is a successful market for me. |
think sales tax numbers need to be mandatory to keep vendors in that are serious about the_ir_b_usiness and those that aren't, out. Try
1o get all venders inside the square, and reopen the street for customer parking.

No

No

No

Never been avendor. S ‘ : .

The farmers market should he moved to the west side waterfront. Or to a place where there Is more space to grow. it's the west sides
turn to hast and reap the benefits from the casual shopping that happens during the market. The east side location is closterfobic
and is unsafe. People are constantly fFwalking and it is just a fittle bit of mayhem an busy days. | actually saw a lady get hit by a car a
couple of years ago and almost die during the farmers market. The west side waterfrant would be a great place to host and grow the
market. Right on the water, big parking lots and surrounded by less busy stréets, The granary could be the center of it.

There shc_)i_J!d be city representation at the market when open, great c_Iiversity in products. locally grown produce only except peaches
and blueherries {items our customers want and cahnot be grown locally)

Between 2011-2015 | had a information booth during Waorld Bréastfeeding Week {August 1-7) at the Farmer's Market, to encourage
breastfeeding mothers. It was always a good experience.

Great space between vendors, nice variety of goods sold.

No

it's a great market

All items must be locally grown.

Sturgeon Bay runs an excellent market, one that tuse as a sample of what markets should look ke, -

|

{love all the people that come. No dogs please.
YES The people from out of town and the State.
Require masks or vendors and buyers - MASK MANDATEH

we killed the market - open the'gates to everyone so we can justify attending. 2 serlous growers were not allowed and very upset.

market the market hetter downtown and locally

Some positi\__re aspects of belng a vendor is that a lot of the residents or those who attend the farmer's inarket are friendly.
surrounding vendors are super friendly as well. .

Very good so far. Have many vendors with different produces and products With hot foods that make the farmer's market aftractive
to local and near by consumers....

NO DOG! Other cities have this and it worksl! No Dog! There should be a Market Manager there also. Make his hours Tuesday-
Saturday! It is unsafe with dogs there, there have heen some fights with them. | think it Is more important to make it a family outing
place than having it asa dog parlk. Also should have a vendor meeting before the season so things can get _ﬁgured out. You just need
a good person that understands markets running e market, and go check cut Ever vendor to make sure they do grow averything. If
the person in charge new anything about flowers he would know you can't gave sunflowers in Junel Think! ’

Promote the market, have a city employee on Staff from 7-12 Saturday's, no dogs, had a dog fight two weeks ago
Yas, lalways felt good about being involved in the maeket

No

Move the Farmer's Market to Third Avenue and make the current parking lot location available for parking.

Yes, a positive aspect of the experience has been seeing everything peaple sell, getting to know the other vendors, and bonding with
them. 1 don't think anything needs to be changed.

httds:#polca.u jmint \/24c30065-3d64-4bi3-a02a-feae8 7 Abbelreport 17420




10/8/2020 . Polco

| am a craft vendor, but but not a preduce vendor. | think the market is very well run. 1 love the direct customer contact. | also love
being able to sell and profit from the labor of my hands, - o
No

No, I've never been a vendor,

no

If door county grown Is require | think you should alfow all existing vendors to continue. This change only affects one nationality, new
uendors need to grow in doar county resale only h[uebernes and peaches, nothing else. Very difficult to grow these in quamtly in door

county and the pubtic really like thesé products,

hitps:iipoleo.us/niadmin/content/ade3C065-3dEc-4bvi 3-ad2a-fcaed7 73bbelreport 18/20




10812020 Pcleo

Any other additional comments, questions, or concerns?

Responses

No

none _

vendars should have been required to mask after July 4. | see a definite decline in local customers that usually come early- they aren't
showlng up this year.

Br._'i;l'g more arfg a'_nd crafts type véhdors'back like last year. Than'_ks_ -

Establish a year round market If possiblel!! . ¢
Thie dog issug has gotien way out of harid:in my opinion..way too 'mghy_'r_d_o'gs 'wlt__h dWh_«_érs who can not properly h'_én_d]_é'.t'hém inthe
market atmospheré.;and way too many in nimbér. Otherwise ] love Saturday Market: o0 e Y e
| love the arts & crafts vendors as well - it's always enjoyable to be ahle to see and support other locals’ passions & habbies, Having
the varlety of vendors makes it a more fun & interesting experience. '

Crafters should sell what they make, Féfméré s_holﬂd sell only \}vhat_théy grow, If | want to buy fruits and lvégéfa't:i:lésr notgrown locally |

can go 1o a grocery stare,”

allowing dogs is a prime determining factor for us. No dogs alfowed is a visit killer, Also, allow food vendors, craft vendors, but aflow
fresh produce as the primary focus, Itis after all, a farmers market.

PLEASE BAN DOGS FRQM THE MARKET - twice a dog has n__ibpéd atmy dau_gh"cer while she was eating a brat purchased at the
market. It's nat safe to have dogs in a tight area with small children. That's why they are not allowed in playground areas cithet. Also
please ban dogs from Martin Park during concerrts. That is a)so another annoying and unnecessary fiabitity for the City.

Please require maskstit

In light of all the rules and precautions taken this yea, | did NOT even make an altempt to attend the Sat. ma_r}_(efg_this summer Missed
it a LOT (it's one of the events that make Door County 50 unquﬁ_e and fun everyane Is friendly, relaxed and not focused on obeying -
rules). The féct that question #8 was Included in this survey bothers me - never experienced or heard a report of a problem with any
unruly pets (or peaplet) during any previous years. If future "markets” don't revert back to the same scope (food, products, crafts,

flowers, etc.) and atmosphere (masic, performers, just a _genefally'FRlENDLY'a_nd relaxed atmosphere), then these events may be self-

destructing while people find something else to do with their Sat. mornings. Want “normal* back, not a revised or sa-called "iniproved"

eve_nt'th_a'_c overly congentrates on convi n_éing the at_t_en_dges_ that things __afe finally sani_ti_z_éd {as if they were d_a'ngerous[y'ﬁ Ithy/g_éfm_—
laden before}, S ) o n o ' .
Haven't been to the Farmers Market this year due to CoViID. We are also part of a CSA and pick up our locally grown produce from
their farm versus the market. It Is working very welt and huge shoui out to Emerald Acres Farm on accomenodating due fo the

pandemic.

| have not attended the market in 2020 due to dogs having been banned.

The market could do without the crafts and jewelry. Local fresh or frozen meat, fish, fowl and similar preducts are good fit, but
preparad hot foods, breads and the like don't belong at a farmer's market.

More food trucksti!

If peaches and blueberties are allowed In they should come directly from the grower NOT A PACKING HOUSE, or bought from a
middle man. Season should continue to end the last Saturday in October for those that sell potatoes, apples, squash and pumpkins.
This years market was cut two weeks short. If the City is going to send out rules and regulation they should be enforced.

Open it up ta products that are made in Door County '

| don't get toe hung up on vendors seling non-local produce early in the summer, e.d. corn and tomatoes. It allows me to get fresher
produce than I would get at the store. | belleve most vendors, if they do use this practice, sell their own grown stuff once it can be
harvested, I'm really OK with that. it's up to you if you want to regulate that more, but 1 don't think it needs to be over thought. 1 enjoy
what produce seems to be available when | go. Thanks for afl you do.

Great location, Dog rule should be enforced.

Pre Covid ohe of my favorite' farmers and craft markets

Keeping vearly vendors in same spot year after year so repeats can find.

NO

Sadly, as a vendor, sales for the year are significantly down

the CDC ¢reated covid pandemic is aim;}st over, but our economy may never recover with 30 million out of work and increasing.'

No Dogs! They are not good around food. No Dogs!

e BTl e b b Tk ] f £ AROANRE A dE A Al ]2 al?a-feas8 77 3bheanan 19120




10i8/2020 Polco

Been a vendar for a LONG time and things sure have changed over the past couple of years! If the cily of $B isn't interested in doing
the market pass it on to someone else that may be interested, maybe SB visitors center. get your head eut of your @$8es this market
is hormally well attended by visitors and locals alike and want variety of local produce, arts, Crafts and ready to eat focds.

They should be open until 1:00. Start later in the morning

No

I'm glad to be going back to my original spot next year. - -~

| also like seeing local crafts and miss those this year.

Indbdr'in_ihe't&in'ter g = : '

Make it more of an event to draw peaple in. Feature a local musician, have something fun for children, include health and wellness
hooths, healthy food cheices, a learning activity for children, tourist information booth to highlight activities such as the Door Gounty
Treasure Hunts, Geg-caching and family related activities. More local products to highlight businesses le. pizza by the slice, oils, syrup,
cherry products, bakery, etc. § would reatly like to see a permanent fish market {or Farmers Market booth} on the West Side when the

waterfront is done. And, please put a bike rack somewhere or designate a spot for parking bicycles so we don't have to look for the
nearest lamp post. Something crafted by a local artist would be great for our community, poasibly metal in the shape of a fish or

something colorful.

hitps:#peleo.usinfzdminfconientied¢30055-345¢-4b13-a02a-feae87{7abbalrepart 20§20




